Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN AND FAMILIES)
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Wednesday, 6th July, 2022 at 10.30 am
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 10.15 a.m.)
MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

Mr E A Britten
Mr A Graham
Mrs K Blacker
Ms J Ward
Ms C Foote
Ms H Bellamy
Ms L Whitaker

H Bithell

-

Kirkstall;

J Bowden

-

Roundhay;

E Bromley

-

Horsforth;

A Forsaith

-

Farnley and Wortley;

J Heselwood

-

Bramley and Stanningley;

C Howley

-

Weetwood;

Z Hussain

-

Roundhay;

A Lamb (Chair)

-

Wetherby;

L Martin

-

Roundhay;

D Ragan

-

Burmantofts and Richmond
Hill;

K Renshaw

-

Ardsley and Robin Hood;

L Richards

-

Wetherby;

J Senior

-

Morley South;

R. Stephenson

-

Harewood;

Co-opted Members (Voting)
- Church Representative (Catholic)
- Church Representative (Church of England)
- Parent Governor Representative (Primary)
- Parent Governor Representative (Secondary)
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting)
- School Staff Representative
- School Staff Representative
- Young Lives Leeds

To Note: Please do not attend the meeting in person if you have symptoms of Covid-19 and
please follow current public health advice to avoid passing the virus onto other people.
Note to observers of the meeting: To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the
‘View the Meeting Recording’ link which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked
below) ahead of the meeting. The webcast will become available at the commencement of
the meeting.
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1089&MId=11920

Principal Scrutiny Adviser:
Angela Brogden
Tel: (0113) 37 88661
Produced on Recycled Paper

A

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting).

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1. To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.
2. To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.
3. If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:
No exempt items have been identified.

B

3

LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

4

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
To disclose or draw attention to any interests in
accordance with Leeds City Council’s ‘Councillor
Code of Conduct’.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES
To receive any apologies for absence and
notification of substitutes.

6

MINUTES - 8TH JUNE 2022

5 - 10

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the
meeting held on 8th June 2022.
7

OFSTED INSPECTION REPORT

11 16

To receive a report from the Director of Children
and Families which informs the Scrutiny Board of
the planned actions to respond to the
recommendations of the ILACS inspection 2022.
8

REFRESH OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE'S PLAN

17 24

To receive a report from the Director of Children
and Families which presents an overview of the
planned refresh process relating to the Children
and Young People’s Plan and invites the Scrutiny
Board to review the existing plan and discuss
areas that may be changed during the current
refresh process.

9

WORK SCHEDULE
To consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for
the 2022/23 municipal year.

C

25 42

10

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday, 7th September 2022 at 10.00 am (premeeting for all Board Members at 9.45 am)
THIRD PARTY RECORDING
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those
not present to see or hear the proceedings either as
they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of
those proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is
available from the contacts on the front of this agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties – code of practice
a) Any published recording should be
accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context
of the discussion that took place, and a clear
identification of the main speakers and their
role or title.
b) Those making recordings must not edit the
recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the
proceedings or comments made by
attendees. In particular there should be no
internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at
any point but the material between those
points must be complete.
Webcasting
Please note – the publicly accessible parts of this
meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast
via the City Council’s website. At the start of the
meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or part of the
meeting is to be filmed.

D

Agenda Item 6
SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN AND FAMILIES)
WEDNESDAY, 8TH JUNE, 2022
PRESENT:

Councillor A Lamb in the Chair
Councillors H Bithell, J Bowden, E Bromley,
A Forsaith, J Heselwood, Z Hussain, S Lay,
D Ragan, K Renshaw, L Richards,
R. Stephenson and J Tudor

CO-OPTED MEMBER (VOTING)
Mr E A Britten - Church Representative (Catholic)
CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING)
Ms C Foote – School Staff Representative
Ms H Bellamy – School Staff Representative
Ms L Whitaker - Young Lives Leeds
1

Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

2

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no exempt items.

3

Late Items
There were no late items.

4

Declaration of Interests
There were no declarations of interest.

5

Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Howley, Councillor
Martin, Councillor Senior and Co-opted Members Kate Blacker, Jackie Ward
and Andrew Graham.
Councillor Lay attended as substitute for Councillor Howley and Councillor
Tudor attended as substitute for Councillor Martin.

6

Minutes - 11th May 2022
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 11th May 2022 be
approved as an accurate record.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 6th July, 2022

Page 5

7

Co-opted Members
The Head of Democratic Services submitted a report which sought the
Board’s consideration for the appointment of co-opted members.
The Board noted that the following nominations for statutory voting co-opted
members had been received:
One Church of England diocese representative – Mr A Graham
One Roman Catholic diocese representative – Mr E A Britten
Parent governor representatives were noted as follows:
Parent Governor (Primary) representative – Kate Blacker
Parent Governor (Secondary) representative – Jacqueline Ward
In addition to the statutory voting co-opted members, the Board also
acknowledged the nominations for non-voting co-opted members.
RESOLVED – That in addition to the above statutory voting co-opted
members, the following be appointed as non-voting co-opted members to the
Scrutiny Board for 2022/23:




8

School Staff Representative – Helen Bellamy
School Staff Representative – Celia Foote
Young Lives Leeds – Laura Whitaker

Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference
The Head of Democratic Services submitted a report that presented the
Board’s terms of reference for information.
RESOLVED – That the Board’s terms of reference be noted.

9

Sources of work for the Scrutiny Board
The Head of Democratic Services submitted a report on potential sources of
work and areas of priority within the Board’s terms of reference.
The following information was appended to the report:
-

The Best City Ambition
Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan 2018-2023
A summary of the Council’s 2022/23 budget proposals relevant to the
remit of the Children and Families Scrutiny Board.

The following were in attendance:
-

Councillor David Jenkins, Deputy Executive Member

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 6th July, 2022

Page 6

-

Councillor Jane Dowson, Deputy Executive Member
Sal Tariq, Director of Children and Families
Shaheen Myers, Deputy Director of Learning
Tim Pouncey, Chief Officer Resources and Strategy
Ruth Terry, Chief Officer for Social Work
Val Waite, Head of Service Learning Inclusion
Dave Clark, Head of Service Learning Improvement

The Chair invited views from Officers, Executive Members and Board
Members around potential areas of work for the Scrutiny Board to undertake
this year. In summary, the following key areas were highlighted:
 Early scrutiny engagement surrounding the refresh of the Children and
Young People’s Plan;
 The implications of recommendations arising from the recently published
national independent review of Children’s Social Care by Josh MacAlister;
 Recruitment and Retention of Teachers and Social Work Staff;
 The Schools Bill 2022-23 and the impact on Leeds;
 Review of Ofsted ratings of schools in the city;
 The implications of proposals set out within the green paper on the future
of the SEND and alternative provision system in England.
 Exam results within the context of Covid impact and fairness;
 A continued focus around Elective Home Education;
 Social, Emotional and Mental Health needs of young people, with links to
the My Health, My School survey and the Future In Mind Strategy;
 Support provided to Ukrainian and Afghan refugee children and their
families.
 Young offenders and the support provided in tackling youth re-offending;
 Review of extracurricular activities available outside of school;
 The impacts of poverty on children and their families;
 The provision and quality of Education, Health and Care Plans.
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report and the suggested areas of
work, as set out above, be noted.
10

Performance Update
The Director of Children and Families submitted a report which provided a
summary of performance information relating to outcomes for Leeds children
and young people.
The following were in attendance:
-

Councillor David Jenkins, Deputy Executive Member
Councillor Jane Dowson, Deputy Executive Member
Sal Tariq, Director of Children and Families
Shaheen Myers, Deputy Director of Learning
Tim Pouncey, Chief Officer Resources and Strategy
Ruth Terry, Chief Officer for Social Work
Val Waite, Head of Service Learning Inclusion

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 6th July, 2022

Page 7

-

Dave Clark, Head of Service Learning Improvement
Chris Hudson, Policy, Planning and Procedures Leader

The Policy, Planning and Procedures Leader introduced the report and gave a
brief update surrounding the three obsessions set out in the Children and
Young People’s Plan.
In consideration of the report, the Board discussed the following issues:
 School attendance rates – the Board sought clarity in terms of differences
in attendance rates between the lowest and highest ranked local
authorities.
 Young Offenders – particular focus was given to the proportion of young
offenders who re-offend.
 Initial child protection conferences (ICPCs) – the Board discussed ICPC
timelines and acknowledged the work undertaken to build the capacity of
the Child Protection Team back to required levels, particularly to help
address increasing demands across the safeguarding system.
 NEET and Not Known – while acknowledging that the Not Known figure
had marginally improved from last year, the Board acknowledged the
commitment to increase workforce capacity and to continue to work
closely with the Youth Service to achieve further improvement.
 Education, Health and Care Plans – the Board acknowledged the
workload demands placed upon existing staff and welcomed plans to
increase workforce capacity and other efficiency measures to also help
improve communications with families.
 Providing support to families living outside of a cluster area – the Board
discussed the importance of all families, including those living outside of
identified cluster areas, being given opportunity to access support services
and how this will link to the work being undertaken around becoming a
Marmot City.
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted.
11

Inquiry into Exclusions, Elective Home Education and Off-rolling Statement of Progress
The Head of Democratic Services submitted a report relating to the scrutiny
Inquiry into Exclusions, Elective Home Education (EHE) and Off-rolling.
Appended to this report was a Statement of Progress document which
summarised the progress made in relation to the Board’s Inquiry work,
including a brief overview of the preliminary findings stemming from the
evidence to-date and highlighting key considerations to help inform the next
steps of the Scrutiny Board’s work.
The following were in attendance:
-

Sal Tariq, Director of Children and Families
Shaheen Myers, Deputy Director of Learning

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 6th July, 2022

Page 8

-

Val Waite, Head of Service Learning Inclusion

In consideration of the Statement, the following issues were raised:
 Other independent review work around EHE - the Board acknowledged
that other independent review work featuring Elective Home Education
had also been undertaken by the Leeds Safeguarding Children
Partnership and through the recent Ofsted inspection of children’s services
in Leeds, both of which had complemented the inquiry work already
undertaken by Scrutiny.
 Consideration of forthcoming legislative changes – it was noted that
forthcoming legislative changes, particularly in relation to the Schools Bill,
the Children Not In School government response and SEND green paper
proposals, would have significant implications that would warrant more
detailed and timely consideration by the Scrutiny Board.
 Work with Leeds Trinity University – the Board was informed of a piece of
national research involving work being undertaken with Leeds Trinity
University around learners that may be in a vulnerable context and looking
at the level of provision available in ensuring they are not missing out from
an appropriate education offer. Such work will involve looking at particular
cohorts and also profiling data across schools which will involve looking at
EHE rates, the number of permanent and fixed term exclusions, and
EHCP figures that would help to prompt any further investigatory work with
those schools and to offer any support.
 Tackling off-rolling – the Board discussed existing mechanisms in place
that aim to potentially identify and tackle the practice of off-rolling,
including a more rigorous approach adopted as part of the Ofsted
inspection framework, the role of Governors in monitoring their own school
exclusion patterns; opportunities to raise issues as part of regular monthly
meetings held between the Council and Ofsted; as well as the opportunity
to explore potential indicators as part of the research work being
undertaken with Leeds Trinity University.
 Behavioural policies – in terms of issues already reflected within the
Statement document around behavioural policies, it was noted that a
revised Behaviour in Schools Guidance and Suspension and Permanent
Exclusion Guidance was expected to be published shortly and put in place
for the school year 2022/23.
In conclusion, the Chair acknowledged that further work was still warranted by
the Scrutiny Board, particularly in terms of understanding the implications of
relevant forthcoming legislative changes, and that the timeliness of
undertaking such further work be considered as the Board develops its future
work schedule.
RESOLVED – That the report and Statement of Progress document be noted
and that consideration be given to the timeliness of further work being
undertaken by the Board as it develops its future work schedule.
12

Work Schedule
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 6th July, 2022

Page 9

The Head of Democratic Services submitted a report that presented the draft
work schedule for the forthcoming municipal year. Reflected in the work
schedule were known items of scrutiny activity, such as performance and
budget monitoring, as well as other areas of work recommended by the
former Scrutiny Board to be pursued in the 2022/23 municipal year.
The Chair reminded the Board of the commitment made by the Leeds
Safeguarding Children Partnership Executive last month in terms of coming
back to a future meeting to share the report on the outcome of their
notifications review. It was therefore noted that this is to be incorporated into
the work schedule once the review work has concluded.
Linked to the Board’s earlier discussion, it was highlighted that an item on the
refresh of the Children and Young People’s Plan would be scheduled for the
Board’s July meeting.
With regard to the other potential areas of work identified during the Board’s
discussions, the Chair explained that he would liaise with the Principal
Scrutiny Adviser and the Director of Children and Families to consider how
best to prioritise and incorporate these into the work schedule with a view to
bringing an updated version to the Board’s next meeting for consideration and
approval.
RESOLVED –
(a) That an item on the refresh of the Children and Young People’s Plan is
scheduled for the Board’s July meeting.
(b) That the Chair liaises with the Principal Scrutiny Adviser and the Director
of Children and Families to consider how best to prioritise and incorporate
the other identified areas of work into the work schedule with a view to
bringing an updated version to the Board’s next meeting for consideration
and approval.
13

Date and Time of Next Meeting
Wednesday, 6th July at 10.00 am (pre-meeting for Board Members at 9.45
am)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 6th July, 2022

Page 10

Agenda Item 7
Report author: Ruth Terry
Tel: 0113 3783629

Ofsted Inspection Report
Date: 6 July 2022
Report of: Director of Children and Families
Report to: Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Brief summary


Ofsted undertook a two-day Ofsted Focussed Visit to the Leeds Children and Families
Front Door on the 20th and 21st July 2021. An action plan has been in place to address
the recommendations from this visit. The children and families scrutiny board has had
regular updates on this action plan to date. The areas of focus have been:
A. The quality and consistency of assessments to ensure that key information and
family history is gathered and analysed to inform decision-making, and the quality
of children’s plans.
B. The quality and impact of management oversight and supervision to ensure that
decisions are timely and well recorded.
C. The quality and independence of audits to ensure that they provide learning to
support improvement in social work practice and provide senior managers with an
understanding of the quality of that practice.



Between Monday 21st February and Friday 4th March 2022, Ofsted undertook a full
inspection of children’s services in Leeds. This inspection was undertaken under the
‘ILACS’ (Inspecting Local Authority Children’s Services) framework. The outcome letter
was published on Monday 9th May 2022.



The purpose of this report is to:
a) Update the Children and Families Scrutiny Board on the outcomes of the ILACS
inspection that relate to the front door focused visit recommendations.
b) Inform the Children and Families Scrutiny Board of the planned actions to respond to
the recommendations of the ILACS inspection 2022. The actions will form part of the
children and families transition plan.

Recommendations
a) Members are asked to note progress on recommendations from the front door focused
inspection and to approve completion of the actions taken.
b) Note the recommendations from the further ILACS inspection and the actions set out in
relation to these.
Page 11

What is this report about?
1.

The action plan from Ofsted’s front door focussed visit has been implemented and
accepted as complete during the most recent ILACS inspection.

2.

A further inspection was undertaken under the Ofsted ‘ILACS’ (Inspecting Local Authority
Children’s Services) framework between Monday 21st February and Friday 4th March
2022.

3.

Ofsted describes the ILACS approach as a whole system of inspection which aims to apply
a proportionate and risk-based approach. Ofsted use intelligence and information to decide
how best to inspect each local authority.

4.

The Ofsted outcome letter was published on 9th May 2022 and can be found here
50182665 (ofsted.gov.uk)

5.

The inspection has found Leeds Children and Family Services to be outstanding overall
with outstanding services for children looked after and care leavers, outstanding for the
effectiveness of leaders and good for the experiences and progress of children who need
help and protection.

6.

Additionally, the letter highlights the progress children’s social care has made since the
Ofsted inspection of the front door in July 2021, stating: “An action plan was promptly put in
place to address the areas for improvement identified at the last focused visit. This
inspection has found that all of these areas have now improved through this planning. The
local authority’s self-assessment provides an accurate picture of key areas of improvement
work and areas for development. In the self-assessment and during the inspection, leaders
have been open about the key challenges that have driven a higher rate of referrals and
increased numbers of children open to the service. Despite these challenges, the vast
majority of children receive a high-quality service and have good relationships with their
social workers, which is leading to improvements in their individual circumstances.”

7. Recommendation A, the quality and consistency of assessments to ensure that key
information and family history is gathered and analysed to inform decision-making,
and the quality of children’s plans- The letter at page 3 highlights the quality of
assessments stating: “Children’s assessments are thorough and comprehensive. They are
mostly timely, although there is acknowledgement from leaders that some assessments
could be completed more quickly if they were briefer. Social workers understand the risks
and protective factors for the child. Children’s culture and identity are very well understood
by social workers. This ensures that sensitive and tailored support and interventions are
offered.”
8.

Recommendation B, the quality and impact of management oversight and
supervision to ensure that decisions are timely and well recorded- Page 2 of the letter
notes the progress in respect of timeliness of contacts being responded to at the front door“Children’s needs and risks are identified promptly, and for most children there are timely
actions that aim to support the reduction of risks to children. Management oversight of
timeliness of response to referrals has been improved since the last focused visit, which
identified this as an area for improvement. There is strong management oversight of
referrals. Social workers are skilled and knowledgeable about what actions they need to
take to ensure that they gather the right information to inform decision-making.”

9.

Supervision, the cornerstone of good social work practice, is noted in the letter to be of a
high standard with social workers benefiting from robust management support. “Social
workers benefit from high-quality supervision from experienced managers. Workers spoke
Page 12

highly about supervision and about their team managers. The management support they
receive is highly valued and is helping workers to develop solutions to complex situations,
and as a result, this helps children’s circumstances to improve.”
10. Recommendation C, the quality and independence of audits to ensure that they
provide learning to support improvement in social work practice and provide senior
managers with an understanding of the quality of that practice- Regarding the quality
assurance framework and audit work, Ofsted states that “Since the focused visit, the
quality assurance framework and audit process have been reviewed and refreshed. Audits
are now completed by team managers independent from the child’s social work team,
leading to greater oversight and independent scrutiny of the quality of practice. Moderation
panels have been built into the process to ensure consistency. There are numerous robust
panels chaired by managers and quality processes across the service which ensure that
the quality of practice remains of a high standard.”
11. In relation to multiagency attendance at strategy meetings, page 3 of the letter comments
on the improvements in partner attendance at multiagency strategy meetings- “When risks
to children escalate, most children’s needs are considered in multi-agency strategy
meetings. Attendance of partner agencies has improved since the last focused visit and
there is detailed information-sharing and appropriate decision-making in these meetings.
Subsequent child protection enquiries are thorough, with a clear assessment of risk which
then informs the next steps.”
12. There are two further recommendations set out in the ILACS report:


Contingency planning in children’s written plans



Consistent decision-making for strategy discussions

13. Consistent decision making for strategy discussions - Where information gathered
during a Referral or Assessment results in a social worker suspecting that the child is
suffering or likely to suffer Significant Harm, a Strategy Discussion/Meeting should be held
to decide whether to initiate enquiries under Section 47 of the Children Act 1989.
14. These referrals can be new referrals to the service or be made following an incident or
information emerging about a child/ren already known to the service.
15. In Leeds, these referrals are quality assured through a weekly referral and review meeting
to provide scrutiny of decision making and offering feedback to managers to improve
practice. The meeting is a multiagency meeting chaired by the Principal Social Worker and
attended by senior managers in health, Police and social work. Social work team managers
attend this meeting as part of their own learning and development.
16. During the ILACS inspection, Ofsted inspectors observed the live meeting that was taking
place that week. The participants in the meeting identified a small number of decisions that
they raised queries about in line with their usual practice. Ofsted agreed with the challenge
and as such have put forward this recommendation.
17. The quality of strategy discussions is an area of practice that requires continuous
monitoring and development. The monitoring is undertaken weekly on a multiagency basis
as described and through dip sampling as part of our audit framework.
18. To support practice development, a strategy discussion practice guide was developed for
managers in 2021. A second practice guide is currently being written, to focus specifically
on undertaking strategy discussions when a child or young person is already open to
Page 13

children’s social work. This will be completed by July 2022 and relevant training will be
developed to embed practice in this very specific area of practice.
19. Revised Section 47 training has been developed and launched for all social workers as
part of social work progression, this includes detail on strategy discussions.
20. The social work service and workforce development lead are reviewing and will enrich
where appropriate, the training offer for strategy discussions and contingency planningany changes will be implemented by September 2022.
21. From July 2022 the Principal Social Worker will be offering peer support, mentoring and
guidance specifically for all social work managers when she will be based for periods of the
week in social work teams.
22. Contingency planning in children’s written plans – During the ILACS inspection and as
part of the examination of case files Ofsted inspectors identified that while social workers
could describe the contingency plans for children and young people effectively, the written
records of these plans could be improved.
23. The service has set up a task and finish group to develop a program of practice
improvement in relation to contingency planning. The overall aim will be to ensure all social
workers and managers have a good understanding of contingency planning and that all
children subject to a Child in Need or Child Protection Plan have a contingency plan built
into their overall plan. This work will include a review of the electronic record that is used to
record children’s plans to ensure there is a clear and usable section for contingency
planning.
24. There will be a review of the interactive learning audit form to ensure contingency planning
is an area of consideration in the audit of case work.
25. The service delivery manager for the integrated safeguarding unit has begun a piece of
development work with the child protection chairs to improve the use of contingency
planning in child protection planning. This will be completed by September 2022.
26. Both areas of practice are included in the annual schedule of thematic audit to ensure
robust review and scrutiny of progress against agreed outcomes. In addition, there will be
quarterly dip sampling of children’s plans to ensure contingency planning is evident in case
records. This will be an ongoing process and reviewed via the monthly quality assurance
meeting.

What impact will this proposal have?
27. This report updates the Children and Families Scrutiny Board on the outcomes of the
ILACS inspection that relate to the front door focused visit recommendations. It also
informs the Children and Families Scrutiny Board of the planned actions to respond to the
recommendations of the ILACS inspection 2022. The actions will form part of the children
and families transition plan.
How does this proposal impact the three pillars of the Best City Ambition?
☒ Health and Wellbeing

☐ Inclusive Growth

☒ Zero Carbon

28. This report relates to the Council’s priority to make Leeds a Child Friendly City.

Page 14

What consultation and engagement has taken place?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☐ No

29. The Children and Families directorate undertakes regular day to day consultation and more
formal focussed consultation and engagement activity with a range of children, young
people and families.
30. The directorate has an active Voice and Influence team who facilitate and enable the voice
of children and families to shape and influence service delivery and development.
31. The directorate has developed a ‘Let’s Talk’ programme that has enabled families with
lived experience of the directorate and its services to shape and influence services in the
here and now and in planning for the future.
What are the resource implications?
32. This report has no specific resource implications. The Children and Families directorate will
implement the actions within current resource and capacity.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
33. The key risk is inconsistency in practice and service delivery that may result in poorer
outcomes for children and families. The directorate has developed a Transition Plan.
Progress against the Transition Plan is closely monitored by the Children and Families
Senior Leadership Team through its performance management and quality assurance
framework.
What are the legal implications?
34. The Children and Families Social Work Service has a range of statutory functions, the
actions noted in this report which will be incorporated into the transition will ensure that
legal duties and responsibilities are fulfilled through the delivery of consistent high-quality
child and family led practice and services.
Appendices


None

Background papers


None

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Report author: Chris Hudson
Tel: 0113 37 85515

The refresh of the Children and Young People’s Plan
Date: Wednesday 06 July 2022
Report of: Director of Children’s Services
Report to: Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐Yes ☒No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐Yes ☒No

Brief summary
The Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) is the shared vision for everyone working with
children and young people in Leeds. The plan is being refreshed to take account of the
current national picture, and evolving local challenges.

This report provides an overview of the planned refresh process, including wider consultation
in September/October 2022 and a final approval date of summer 2023. The refresh process
is in the early planning stages and this report is a first opportunity for Scrutiny members to
review the existing plan and to discuss areas of the CYPP that may be changed during the
current refresh process.

Recommendations
a) Note the outline timetable for the refresh of the CYPP, which includes several opportunities
for informal and formal consultation around the current and proposed content of the CYPP.
b) Consider the questions at point six of the report as a starting point for the discussion around
the CYPP refresh.
c) Indicate how Scrutiny would like to be involved in the refresh process.

Page 17

What is this report about?
1 The CYPP is the shared vision for everyone working with children and young people in Leeds.
It sets out the vision for Leeds to be the best city in the UK for children and young people to
grow up in, and to be a Child Friendly city. Leeds is a big and complex city facing significant
and stubborn challenges. Outcomes are not always good enough and are not always
consistent across the city and for different groups and communities.
2 Children and young people’s plans were a statutory requirement between 2006 and 2010.
Whilst the statutory requirement for CYPPs was rescinded in 2010, Leeds - like many local
authorities - chose to continue to maintain its CYPP as the overarching strategic plan that
guides the children’s partnership in the city. The current iteration of CYPP was launched in
2011 and has been refreshed three times; in 2013, in 2015, and in 2018. This refresh will cover
the period 2023 to 2028 and takes account of the current national picture and evolving local
challenges. A copy of the current plan is in appendix one.

3 The CYPP has, since 2011, supported and guided the partnership approach in Leeds, focused
around the three obsessions, to improve outcomes for children and young people in Leeds.
Whilst the number of indicators and priorities have altered across the last ten years, the CYPP
has retained much of its content, with its vision, three obsessions, and five outcomes being the
driving forces of the Plan. Progress has been made against key areas of the Plan leading to
subtle alterations during each refresh. The current refresh will look to continue this theme of
evolving the Plan rather than making wholesale changes.

4 The challenge of the changing national picture, and the evolving local situation requires the
partnership to ensure that the CYPP remains focused on the vulnerable children and young
people who most need support and intervention. The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is
addressed through associated strategies, such as the 3As Strategy, and the cost-of-living crisis
and rising inflation will have an impact on children and families. Both issues are factors that
may slow progress against the priorities in the Plan but are unlikely to be explicitly referenced in
the final CYPP.

5 Outcome Based Accountability (OBA) is a tool for planning and performance management. It is
action- and outcome-focused. The CYPP uses OBA to bring people together to improve shared
outcomes by moving from talk to action. It asks three simple, yet powerful, questions: ‘what are
we doing?’, ‘how well are we doing it?’, and ‘are we making any difference?’. OBA brings a
focus to what is most important, keeping detail at an appropriate level: the three obsessions are
at the centre of this approach. The CYPP does this by highlighting priorities and measures that
everyone in the children’s partnership can recognise and contribute towards; it acknowledges
the myriad of plans and strategies (such as the 3As Strategy, and the SEND and Inclusion
Strategy) where greater detail and more granularity is found and does not try to duplicate or
replicate what these plans and strategies are in place for.

6 Scrutiny are asked to consider a number of questions during this discussion, which will help
shape the early development of a draft Plan. This draft plan will form the basis of the autumn
consultation exercise.
 Mental health and wellbeing is currently referenced, but could this issue be
enhanced? What would Scrutiny want to be in there, and how would it be measured?
Page 18







The current Plan includes reference to children having fun, but not children playing.
Should play feature in the refreshed plan? How could this be measured?
The climate emergency is a major concern for young people (who want adults to take
action): how can Scrutiny engage with young people to advocate on their behalf?
A formal consultation will take place in the autumn; what areas would Scrutiny like to
see in the online questionnaire?
Transport was included for the first time in the current Plan. Does this remain a
priority and what influence does Scrutiny have to focus on this if it remains?
Equality and diversity is not currently referenced in the Plan. How are we celebrating
differences, and making people feel accepted (link to refugees) - no specific
outcomes but perhaps an approach?

What impact will this proposal have?
7 The CYPP is the shared vision for everyone working with children and young people in Leeds.
The refreshed plan will set out the key priorities for both the Council and the partnership over
the next five years and will help to improve outcomes for children and young people living in
Leeds, with a specific focus on vulnerable children and young people who required the most
support and intervention.
How does this proposal impact the three pillars of the Best City Ambition?
☒ Health and Wellbeing

☐ Zero Carbon

☒ Inclusive Growth

8 Ensuring that children in all areas of the city have the best start in life and enjoy a healthy,
happy, and friendly childhood is a focus of the health and wellbeing pillar in the Best City
Ambition. The inclusive growth pillar has a focus on ensuring that young people have the skills
and job opportunities to help them realise their potential.

9 Consultation with young people in recent years has highlighted that climate change and the
climate emergency are key concerns of children and young people, but young people want
action taken by adults, which do not fit within the remit of the CYPP.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
Wards affected: All wards
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

10 The CYPP is a citywide, partnership, plan and therefore affects all wards. A formal consultation
exercise is planned for the autumn of 2022.
What are the resource implications?
11 There are no specific resource implications from this report.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
12 There are no inherent risks within the CYPP. Regular reporting is the key to ensuring that
outcomes are improving and that challenges are swiftly identified, and remedial action is taken
to mitigate the negative impact of those challenges.
Page 19

What are the legal implications?
13 There is no requirement for this report, or the CYPP, to be subject to call in as it is on the
financial and policy framework.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
14 In the four years since the CYPP was last refreshed both the local and national context have
significantly altered. The CYPP requires a refresh to acknowledge the significant changes that
have affected children and young people in recent year as well as establishing the partnership’s
response to those issues. The CYPP has guided the children’s partnership throughout the last
ten years and has worked in parallel with Child Friendly Leeds to improve outcomes and
opportunities for children and young people in Leeds. For these reasons a sympathetic refresh
was deemed to be most appropriate compared to no refresh, or a radical design of the CYPP.
How will success be measured?
15 The current iteration of the CYPP has twenty performance measures that have been identified
as some of the most important measures to monitor as progress in these areas should help
drive improvements in other areas that affect children and young people. These measures will
be reviewed during the refresh process to ensure that they remain relevant and focused on the
most important areas.
What is the timetable and who will be responsible for implementation?
16 Appendix two contains an outline timetable for the refresh, with the aim of the refreshed CYPP
being approved at Full Council in June or July 2023. The Director of Children’s Services is
responsible for the Plan’s implementation.
Appendices


Appendix one contains the current CYPP. At the last refresh, an eleventh priority was
added because of consultation with children and young people: access to affordable, safe,
and reliable connected transport for young people. Several of the twenty performance
indicators were also new.



Appendix two contains an outline timetable for the refresh process, with the aim being that
the refreshed CYPP is approved at Full Council in June/July 2023. A consultation exercise
in September/October 2022 will allow for a final draft of the proposed CYPP 2023-2028 to
be produced and progress through the Council’s accountability and approval process for a
final approval at Full Council next year.

Background papers


There are no additional papers for this report.

Page 20

Appendix one: the 2018-2023 Children and Young People’s Plan

Page 21

Page 22

Appendix two: outline timetable for the refresh of the CYPP
Activity

Planned start date

Planned end date

Initial discussion at Scrutiny (Children and Families)

06 July 2022

06 July 2022

Shaping of draft CYPP and consultation exercise

July 2022

August 2022

Informal discussions with key partners

July 2022

August 2022

Formal consultation, likely through an online questionnaire

September/October 2022

November 2022

Final review at Scrutiny (Children and Families)

January 2023

February 2023

Council accountability and approval process (Executive Board, CLT etc)

February 2023

May 2023

Approval at Full Council

June/July 2023

June/July 2023

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Report author: Angela Brogden
Tel: 0113 3788661

Work Schedule
Date: 6th July 2022
Report of: Head of Democratic Services
Report to: Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Brief summary


All Scrutiny Boards are required to determine and manage their own work schedule for the
municipal year. In doing so, the work schedule should not be considered a fixed and rigid
schedule, it should be recognised as a document that can be adapted and changed to
reflect any new and emerging issues throughout the year; and also reflect any timetable
issues that might occur from time to time.



The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules also state that, where appropriate, all terms of
reference for work undertaken by Scrutiny Boards will include ‘ to review how and to what
effect consideration has been given to the impact of a service or policy on all equality
areas, as set out in the Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme’.



The latest iteration of the Board’s work schedule is attached to this report for the Board’s
consideration.

Recommendations
Members are requested to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 2022/23 municipal
year.

Page 25

What is this report about?
1 During the Scrutiny Board’s initial meeting on 8th June 2022, Members were presented with a
draft work schedule for the forthcoming municipal year which reflected known items of scrutiny
activity, such as performance and budget monitoring, as well as other areas of work
recommended by the former Scrutiny Board to be pursued in the 2022/23 municipal year.
2 In consideration of this, other key areas of interest were also raised, which included the
following:
 The refresh of the Children and Young People’s Plan;
 The implications of recommendations arising from the recently published national
independent review of Children’s Social Care by Josh MacAlister;
 Recruitment and Retention of Teachers and Social Work Staff;
 The Schools Bill 2022-23 and the impact on Leeds;
 Review of Ofsted ratings of schools in the city;
 The implications of proposals set out within the green paper on the future of the SEND and
alternative provision system in England.
 Exam results within the context of Covid impact and fairness;
 A continued focus around Elective Home Education;
 Social, Emotional and Mental Health needs of young people, with links to the My Health,
My School survey and the Future In Mind Strategy;
 Support provided to Ukrainian and Afghan refugee children and their families.
 Young offenders and the support provided in tackling youth re-offending;
 Review of extracurricular activities available outside of school;
 The impacts of poverty on children and their families;
 The provision and quality of Education, Health and Care Plans.
2. However, in recognition of the need to ensure that the work of the Scrutiny Board remains
manageable, it was agreed that the Chair of the Scrutiny Board would liaise with the Principal
Scrutiny Adviser and Director of Children and Families to consider which of the above areas of
interest would best warrant an in-depth piece of scrutiny work; which are deemed less of a
priority for this year; and which areas could potentially form part of the Board’s discussions
when already tracking progress against relevant key strategic plans.
3. An updated version of the Board’s work schedule for the 2022/23 municipal year has now been
appended for Members’ consideration (set out in Appendix 1) and will be discussed in greater
detail during today’s meeting.
4. The latest Executive Board minutes from the meeting held on 22nd June 2022 are also attached
as Appendix 2. The Scrutiny Board is asked to consider and note the Executive Board
minutes, insofar as they relate to the remit of the Scrutiny Board; and consider any matter
where specific scrutiny activity may also be warranted.
Developing the work schedule
5. When considering any developments and/or modifications to the work schedule, effort should
be undertaken to:
 Avoid unnecessary duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already
having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue.
 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add value and can
be delivered within an agreed time frame.
 Avoid pure “information items” except where that information is being received as part of a
policy/scrutiny review.
Page 26

 Seek advice about available resources and relevant timings, taking into consideration the
workload across the Scrutiny Boards and the type of Scrutiny taking place.
 Build in sufficient flexibility to enable the consideration of urgent matters that may arise
during the year.
6. In addition, in order to deliver the work schedule, the Board may need to take a flexible
approach and undertake activities outside the formal schedule of meetings – such as working
groups and site visits, where necessary and appropriate. This flexible approach may also
require additional formal meetings of the Scrutiny Board.

What impact will this proposal have?
7. All Scrutiny Boards are required to determine and manage their own work schedule for the
municipal year.
How does this proposal impact the three pillars of the Best City Ambition?
☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Zero Carbon

8. The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Boards promote a strategic and outward looking
Scrutiny function that focuses on the Best City Ambition.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☐ No

9. The Vision for Scrutiny states that Scrutiny Boards should seek the advice of the Scrutiny
officer, the relevant Director and Executive Member about available resources prior to agreeing
items of work.
What are the resource implications?
10. Experience has shown that the Scrutiny process is more effective and adds greater value if the
Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial inquiries running at one time and focus its
resources on one key issue at a time.
11. The Vision for Scrutiny, agreed by full Council also recognises that like all other Council
functions, resources to support the Scrutiny function are under considerable pressure and that
requests from Scrutiny Boards cannot always be met.
12. Consequently, when establishing their work programmes Scrutiny Boards should:
 Seek the advice of the Scrutiny officer, the relevant Director and Executive Member about
available resources;
 Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already having
oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue;
 Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add value and can
be delivered within an agreed time frame.

Page 27

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
13. There are no risk management implications relevant to this report.
What are the legal implications?
14. This report has no specific legal implications.
Appendices


Appendix 1 – Latest work schedule of the Children and Families Scrutiny Board for the 2022/23
municipal year.



Appendix 2 – Draft minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on 22nd June 2022.

Background papers


None.

Page 28

Appendix 1

Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Work Schedule for 2022/2023 Municipal Year
June

July

August

Meeting Agenda for 8th June 2022 at 10 am

Meeting Agenda for 6th July 2022 at 10 am

No Scrutiny Board meeting

Co-opted Members (DB)

Improvement Plan stemming from the 2022
Ofsted Inspection (PSR)

Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference (DB)
Scrutiny Inquiry into Exclusions, Elective
Home Education and Off-rolling – Statement
of Progress (PSR)

Refresh of the Children and Young People’s
Plan – initial consultation (PDS)

Page 29

Potential Sources of Work (DB)
Performance Update (PM)
Working Group Meetings

Site Visits

Scrutiny Work Items Key:
PSR
Policy/Service Review
PDS
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

Appendix 1

Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Work Schedule for 2022/2023 Municipal Year

September

October

November

Meeting Agenda for 7th September 2022 at 10 am

Meeting Agenda for 12th October 2022 at 10 am

Meeting Agenda for 30th November 2022 at 10 am

The Schools Bill 2022-23 - Update (PSR)

Notification of Serious Child Safeguarding
Incidents – review findings (PSR)

Leeds SEND and Inclusion Strategy 2021 to
2026 – review of progress (PSR)

Children’s Services Workforce Planning –
potential scope of inquiry (PSR)

Page 30

Working Group Meetings

PSR
PDS

Policy/Service Review
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

Appendix 1

Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Work Schedule for 2022/2023 Municipal Year
December

January

February

No Scrutiny Board meeting.

Meeting Agenda for 25th January 2023 at 10 am

Meeting Agenda for 15th February 2023 at 10 am

Leeds 3As Plan 2021-2023 – review of
progress (PSR)

Performance report (PM)
Financial Health Monitoring (PSR)
2023/24 Initial Budget Proposals (PDS)
Best City Ambition – Update (PDS)
Page 31

Refresh of the Children and Young People’s
Plan – draft new Plan (PDS)
Working Group Meetings

Site Visits

Scrutiny Work Items Key:
PSR
Policy/Service Review
PDS
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

Appendix 1

Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Work Schedule for 2022/2023 Municipal Year
March

April

May

Meeting Agenda for 29th March 2023

No Scrutiny Board meeting

No Scrutiny Board meeting

Youth Services – impact of new model
(PSR)
Youth Justice Plan 2021–24 – progress
update (PSR)
Leeds Child Poverty Strategy – Update
(PSR)
Page 32

Working Group Meetings

Site Visits

Scrutiny Work Items Key:
PSR
Policy/Service Review
PDS
Pre-decision Scrutiny

RT
PM

Recommendation Tracking
Performance Monitoring

DB
C

Development Briefings
Consultation Response

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 22ND JUNE, 2022
PRESENT:

Councillor J Lewis in the Chair
Councillors S Arif, A Carter, D Coupar,
S Golton, M Harland, H Hayden, J Pryor,
M Rafique and F Venner

1

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There was no information contained within the agenda which was designated
as being exempt from publication.

2

Late Items
There were no late items of business submitted to the Board for
consideration.

3

Declaration of Interests
There were no interests declared at the meeting.

4

Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 20th April
2022 be approved as a correct record.
ECONOMY, CULTURE AND EDUCATION

5

Outcome of the statutory notice on a proposal to decommission the
Resource Provision at Gledhow Primary School
Further to Minute No. 131, 16 March 2022, the Director of Children and
Families submitted a report presenting the outcomes from the publication of a
statutory notice on a proposal to decommission the Speech and Language
Resource Provision at Gledhow Primary School with effect from August 2022.
Specifically, the report invited the Board to review the outcome of the statutory
notice and approve the proposal to decommission the Resource Provision
from end of the 2021/22 academic year.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member presented the key points of
this proposal, and noted that there had been no responses received
throughout the statutory notice period.
A Member made enquiries regarding the proposal when considering the wider
provision of, and demand for speech and language services across the city
moving forward. In response, the Board was provided with further detail on
the actions which had been taken when drawing up the proposals, such as
the associated consultation exercise and the work undertaken which had
identified that the proposals would be better suited to providing good
outcomes for the young people using the service. Also, it was noted that there
was confidence that the new model would deliver sufficient provision in the
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 33

city. Responding to a further enquiry on sufficiency of provision, officers
undertook to liaise with health colleagues to provide the Member in question
with further detail on this.
In agreeing the proposals detailed within the submitted report, Councillor A
Carter reiterated the comments that he had made during the consideration of
this item regarding sufficiency of service provision.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the outcomes from the statutory notice, be noted, and that the
proposal to decommission the Resource Provision from the end of the
academic year 2021/22, as detailed within the report, be approved;
(b)

6

That it be noted that the responsible officer for the implementation of
such matters is the Head of Learning Inclusion.

The New Discretionary Business Rate Relief Scheme
Further to Minute No. 19, 22 June 2016, the Director of Resources and the
Director of City Development submitted a joint report regarding the review of
the Discretionary Business Rates Relief policy which had been undertaken,
and which presented proposals for a new scheme for the Board’s
consideration, which aimed to support the creation, retention and
improvement of employment delivering inclusive growth in the city.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received further detail
regarding the proposal to cap the total scheme value at £1.75m, which it was
noted was a cap level that had been carried over from the previously agreed
scheme. In addition, responding to a specific enquiry, clarification was
provided that whilst the Council’s Community Centres were charged Business
Rates, the Council did not apply for those centres to be part of the Business
Rates Relief scheme.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the policy for the new Discretionary Business Rates Relief
Scheme, as detailed within the submitted report, be approved;
(b)

7

That the decision to award discretionary business rate relief be
delegated to the Director of City Development, together with authority
to make any minor alterations to the approved scheme.

Securing the proposed new public artwork in memory of David Oluwale
and for the City of Leeds, and Authority to enter into an Agreement with
Leeds Culture Trust
The Director of City Development submitted a report which provided
information on the collaborative work being undertaken to establish a new
landmark public art commission for Leeds designed to commemorate the life
of David Oluwale and to also provide representation and aspiration to the
community he came from. The report sought approval regarding related
expenditure, and also sought authority to enter into an agreement with Leeds
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 34

Culture Trust to set out the respective obligations between the parties with
regard to delivering the project.
Responding to Members’ enquiries, assurance was provided on the actions
which were being taken to ensure that the Council was fully supporting Leeds
2023’s fundraising strategy for the initiative and that Board Members would
receive regular updates as appropriate in relation to this project and its
financial position. In addition, it was noted that the £1.83m would be included
within the overall fundraising aspirations of Leeds 2023 in the delivery of the
year of culture, and during the year this project would be one of signature
events.
RESOLVED –
(a) That approval be given to Leeds City Council front funding the cost of
the project, as detailed within the submitted report, up to £1.83m, to
be held against the Capital Programme contingency reserve, with the
amount being held against the reserve being reduced as the
fundraising progresses;
(b) That the authority required to enter into an agreement with Leeds
Culture Trust in order to set out the respective obligations between
the parties with regard to delivering the project, be approved;
(c) That Board Members receive regular updates, as appropriate, in
relation to this project and its financial position.
INFRASTRUCTURE AND CLIMATE
8

Submission of Round 2 Levelling Up Fund (LUF) Bids
Further to Minute No. 138, 20th April 2022, the Director of City Development
submitted a report which provided an update on the current position regarding
the Round 2 of the Levelling Up Fund (LUF). In addition, the report also
sought approval of the submission of the proposed bids, and also sought
approval of related expenditure, as detailed.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member provided an overview of the
actions taken to date which had led to the proposed round 2 LUF bids, as
detailed within the submitted report. The Executive Member thanked those
officers who had progressed the proposed submissions to this stage in what
had been a limited timeframe.
Members noted the approach which had been taken towards the bids in terms
of the number of bids proposed and the broad range of projects that they
covered. Responding to a Member’s enquiries both on that approach and
also on whether there was a prioritisation of the bids, it was noted that when
submitted, each bid would be assessed in its own right and whilst the Council
had not been asked to prioritise the bids, should a request be received from
Government in relation to this, it was undertaken that a process would be
established, as appropriate.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 35

In conclusion, Members noted the role of the constituency MPs in the
respective bids, the fact that it was unknown whether there would be any
further LUF funding rounds in the future, that Government feedback on LUF
bids whether they be successful or otherwise, would be welcomed, and that
Leeds had been allocated ‘priority status’ for this second round, which had
afforded the Council the opportunity to submit a bid for each constituency.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That agreement be given for the projects as listed in paragraphs 5-10
of the submitted report to be submitted as the Council’s bids under
Round 2 of the Levelling Up Fund, and that the necessary authority be
delegated to the Director of City Development to enable the Director to
undertake the necessary work to finalise and refine the bids in order to
ensure submissions by the deadline of 6th July 2022;
(b)

That agreement be given for the use of the Council’s Capital
Programme contingency funds as a source of match funding to the
LUF bids and/or that agreement be given to use such funds to
underwrite the unknown outcome of other external funding bids relating
to the LUF projects, as set out in paras 24-30 of the submitted report;

(c)

That in the event of bid success, agreement be given for the Director of
City Development to undertake the further work necessary to progress
all required planning and other statutory approvals that will need to be
in place to enable delivery of the LUF-funded projects, in consultation
with the Executive Member for Infrastructure and Climate and the
Executive Member for Public Health and Active Lifestyles, as
appropriate and as relevant in each case;

(d)

That the decisions taken in relation to this report be exempted from the
Call In process, due to the risk that the deadline for bid submission on
the 6th July 2022 is missed, as further detailed in paragraphs 34 – 35
of the submitted report.

(The Council’s Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules state that a
decision may be declared as being exempt from the Call In process by the
decision taker if it is considered that the matter is urgent and any delay would
seriously prejudice the Council’s, or the public’s interests. In line with this, the
resolutions contained within this minute were exempted from the Call In
process, as per resolution (d) above, and for the reasons as detailed within
sections 34 - 35 of the submitted report)
9

Leeds Station Sustainable Travel Gateway Scheme
Further to Minute No. 80, 17th October 2018, the Director of City Development
submitted a report regarding the Leeds Station Sustainable Travel Gateway
project (LSSTG) which was being delivered as part of the West Yorkshire
Combined Authority (WYCA) Transforming Cities Fund programme. The
LSSTG project, which was a joint undertaking with WYCA and Network Rail
aimed to address issues of capacity, accessibility, health and safety, security
and connectivity from the station’s entrance on New Station Street to the City
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 36

Centre and South Bank. Specifically, the report sought required approvals for
an injection into the Capital Programme and associated authority to spend.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member provided an overview of the
development of the scheme to date, what the proposed works entailed, details
of the associated timeframe and gave a brief summary of the consultation
exercise undertaken. Detail was also provided on the latest trends in
passenger numbers accessing the station. The Executive Member also
highlighted that in order to meet the long term needs of Leeds Station it was
proposed by Network Rail to create a pedestrian priority area on New Station
Street which was owned by Network Rail, with it also being noted that the
proposed works would predominately be delivered on Network Rail property
and that Network Rail would manage and maintain the asset when completed.
A Member highlighted concerns from some taxi and private hire trade
representatives and from some representing disability groups on the
proposals which had been brought to his attention. It was noted that such
concerns were specifically regarding disabled accessibility and the relocation
of the taxi rank to Bishopgate Street and the potential for capacity related
issues arising. In response, it was emphasised that whilst the Council would
continue to work with partners on such matters and in acknowledging the
related concerns which had been raised, it was reiterated that New Station
Street was Network Rail property and the security decision to remove vehicles
from New Station Street had been taken by Network Rail.
In relation to the concerns regarding disabled access, the Board received an
overview of the breadth of consultation undertaken, and whilst the concerns
raised as part of that consultation were acknowledged, the level of support
which had been provided was highlighted. In addition, details were provided
on how the proposals aimed to improve accessibility, including disabled
access in the vicinity of the station. Finally, officers undertook to provide the
Member in question with further detail / a briefing around the modelling and
design work that had taken place and which had led to the proposals, should
this be required.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the previous injections and authority to spend of £9.737m up to
the end of May 2022, specifically for development works and advanced
works at Bishopgate East, Neville Street, and Dark Neville Street
ahead of the main construction programme, be noted;
(b)

That the remaining injection of £25.912m from a total of £35.649m
available funding into the Capital Programme be approved (which is
subject to subsequent approval at the West Yorkshire Combined
Authority (WYCA) Transport Committee on 1st July 2022 and entering
into a subsequent Funding Agreement with WYCA); with such funding
delivering the main construction element of Leeds Station Sustainable
Travel Gateway (LSSTG) project;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 37

(c)

That it be noted that approval to enter into the contracts associated
with the delivery of the LSSTG will be subject to the approval of the
Director of City Development, under delegated decision-making
authority;

(d)

That the authority to spend £25.912m on the LSSTG programme in
order to deliver the remaining main construction element of the LSSTG
project, be approved, which will be funded by the Transforming Cities
Fund and administered by WYCA, subject to the WYCA Transport
Committee of 1st July 2022.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor A Carter
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this Minute)
RESOURCES
10

Social Value Fund Proposal
The Director of Resources submitted a report, which further to the
establishment of the Leeds Social Value Charter in 2016, presented the
development of an outline proposal for a Social Value Fund, which involved
charging suppliers/tenderers an annual fee to contribute towards social and
economic value in Leeds, with the aim of the proposal being to provide a
simple mechanism to generate a significant new income stream through
which social value could be enhanced via procurement.
In presenting the report the Executive Member provided an overview of the
proposals for the scheme, gave details of the consultation undertaken to date
and noted that it was expected that the proposal could potentially generate
more than £500,000 every year.
Whilst being supportive of the principle of raising funds for the promotion of
social value, concerns were raised regarding this proposal in terms of the
focus it placed upon the private sector, the timing of the proposals and the
impact it may potentially have upon other existing fund raising schemes. In
response, the Board received further detail regarding the Council’s existing
obligation to derive social value benefit from its procurement process, and
how this scheme aimed to establish a simple and proportionate way of
achieving that from the significant number of smaller contractors the Council
had. In addition, further detail was provided on the positive response which
had been received on the proposals to date.
RESOLVED – That the Social Value Fund proposal, as detailed within the
submitted report, be approved for implementation by the Director of
Resources.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor A Carter
and Councillor S Golton required it to be recorded that they both respectively
voted against the decisions referred to within this Minute)
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 38

11

Financial Performance – Outturn financial year ended 31st March 2022
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report presenting the
Council’s final outturn position for the 2021/22 financial year in respect of both
the revenue and capital budgets and also the Housing Revenue Account. The
report also included expenditure on schools. In addition, the report also
sought approval of proposals regarding the creation of earmarked reserves
and injections into the Capital Programme.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member extended her thanks on
behalf of the Board to the Chief Officer Financial Services and her team for
the work which had been undertaken in getting the Council to its outturn
position, given the range and scale of challenges which continued to be faced,
with it being noted that the final position on the General Fund shows an
underspend of £1.5m.
In response to a Member’s specific enquiry, the Board received further detail
on the financial implications for the Council should any potential pay
settlement in the current financial year be above what had already been
budgeted for.
Responding to a Member’s comments, the Board received an update on the
current position in relation directorate budget reviews and the delivery of
directorate budget action plans. Further to this, whilst acknowledging the
financial support that the Council had received from Government during the
pandemic, it was noted that the Authority had not been allocated further
resource to deal with related backlogs, which had been the case in some
other sectors. It was also noted that dialogue continued with the Government
on such matters, however, when considering the significant financial
challenges that continued to be faced by the Council, it was emphasised that
all directorates would need to undertake financial reviews moving forward.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the Council’s outturn position for the 2021/22 financial year, as
detailed within the submitted report, be noted;
(b)

That the creation of earmarked reserves, as detailed within Appendix 1
to the submitted report, be agreed, and that the release of such
reserves be delegated to the Chief Officer Financial Services;

(c)

That it be noted that the Chief Officer Financial Services will be
responsible for the implementation of the actions (detailed
above/below) following the conclusion of the “Call In” period;

(d)

That the following injections into the Capital Programme be approved,
as detailed at Appendix 5A (iii) to the submitted report: £63,116.9k of Basic Need and High Needs Provision Capital
Allocation (HNPCA) Grants for Schools;
 £27,743.7k of external contributions for the Connecting Leeds /
Leeds Public Transport Investment Programme;
 £2,499.3k of external contributions for Leeds Playhouse; and
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 39


(e)

12

£3,746.5k of other external contributions;

That the additional Capital Receipts Incentive Scheme (CRIS)
allocations to Wards and Community Committees for the period
October 2021 to March 2022 of £262.3k, be noted.

Treasury Management Outturn Report 2021/22
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report which presented the
Council’s Treasury Management Outturn position for 2021/22.
Responding to a Member’s enquiries, the Board received further detail on the
actions taken within the treasury management strategy which had resulted in
an overall saving to the revenue budget, information on why borrowing levels
had reduced during the reporting period and also on the actions being taken
to mitigate risk against the potential implications for the Council should
interest rates continue to rise.
RESOLVED – That the Treasury Management outturn position for 2021/22,
as detailed within the submitted report, be noted, together with the fact that
treasury activity has remained within the Treasury Management strategy and
policy framework.
ADULT AND CHILDREN’S SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH PARTNERSHIPS

13

OfSTED Inspection Report
The Director of Children and Families submitted a report presenting the
findings of the recent Ofsted inspection of Leeds’ Local Authority Children’s
Services which had been carried out between 21st February to 4th March
2022. A copy of the full inspection report was appended to the submitted
report for Members’ consideration.
In presenting the report, the Executive Member highlighted the Council’s
significant achievement of maintaining its ‘Outstanding’ judgement following
the recent Ofsted inspection of Leeds local authority children’s services,
particularly given the unprecedented challenges which had been faced as a
result of the pandemic. The Executive Member then provided the Board with a
detailed overview of the inspection’s outcomes and it was underlined that the
Council would not become complacent in light of this judgement, with
emphasis being placed on the fact that outstanding did not mean perfection. It
was also noted that senior leadership would develop an improvement plan
based upon the inspection’s findings and work with the Children and Families
Scrutiny Board on the implementation of that plan was intended. In
conclusion, the Executive Member paid tribute to and thanked the Director of
Children and Families, together with his team of staff for their continued
dedication to the children of Leeds, with it being highlighted that this
‘Outstanding’ outcome was a testimony to their efforts. Members of the Board
and the Chief Executive echoed the Executive Member’s thanks to the officers
across the Children and Families directorate.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 40

In considering the report, Members welcomed the Executive Member’s
comments about not becoming complacent and highlighted the importance of
remaining vigilant in the protection of children, and also looked forward to
further innovation and improvement in appropriate service areas to build upon
that which had already been achieved.
Members highlighted that whilst the priority would always be the wellbeing of
children in Leeds, there were benefits for the service in the sharing of best
practice with other Authorities, where appropriate.
Responding to a specific enquiry, the Board received an update on the next
steps in relation to a review into the notification of serious child safeguarding
incidents following previous consideration of this matter by the Children and
Families Scrutiny Board, with it being noted that a report was intended to be
submitted from the Leeds Safeguarding Children Partnership Review Advisory
Group to the Scrutiny Bord in due course.
In response to a further enquiry, the Board received information on the range
of actions being taken to address the impact upon Leeds arising from the
national challenge currently faced in relation to social worker shortages which
resulted in higher case loads. This was in addition to the information which
had been provided on such matters by the Executive Member as part of her
introductory comments.
In conclusion, the Executive Member provided an overview of the
improvements which had been made following the Ofsted visit in 2021, which
were reflected in the most recent Ofsted outcomes. It was also highlighted
how a lot of Leeds practice was being recognised nationally. Finally, the
Executive Member reiterated her thanks, on behalf of the Board, to the staff
across the Children and Families directorate.
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the contents of the submitted report, in particular OfSTED’s
recognition that Leeds has maintained a relentless focus on prioritising
services and support to children and families, be noted;
(b)

That it be noted that Leeds has maintained its ‘Outstanding’ rating and
will address the identified areas for improvement;

(c)

That the Board’s appreciation and thanks be formally recorded, for the
following:Front line staff and managers whose often challenging day to day work
has made such a difference to the lives of children and families in
Leeds;
Elected Members and senior officers of the Council who have
prioritised children despite significant challenges arising from the
Covid-19 Pandemic and 12 years of austerity and cuts to Local
Government funding;




Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 41



(d)

The support of our partners, third sector colleagues, businesses and
communities across the city who have supported this work through
Child Friendly Leeds, which enters its tenth year in 2022;
That it be noted that the officer responsible for the implementation of
such matters is the Director of Children and Families.

ENVIRONMENT AND HOUSING
14

Approval of the updated Leeds Housing Strategy
The Director of Communities, Housing and Environment submitted a report
which presented and sought approval of a new strategy for Leeds Housing for
the period 2022 to 2027 which had been developed around six key themes.
The report noted that the proposed new strategy built upon the previous
Housing Strategy (2016 – 2021) and set out the city’s ambitions for housing
over the next five years, whilst also reflecting the evolving priorities and
changes to legislation which have occurred.
In presenting the report, the Executive Member highlighted how the proposed
strategy was built upon its predecessor, but now reflected the evolving
challenges currently being faced in this area which the strategy aimed to
focus upon via the six key themes within it.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received assurance and further
detail on the performance monitoring against the key themes of the strategy
that would be undertaken, with the key role of the Leeds Housing Strategy
Board in this process being emphasised.
Also, the importance of partnership working with colleagues in planning
services was highlighted and acknowledged in order to ensure the best
outcomes for residents and communities across Leeds.
Similarly, in response to a Member’s comments, the importance of delivering
appropriate levels of suitable housing in all communities across Leeds was
acknowledged, with further information on the actions being taken in this area
being provided, which again included the partnership working arrangements
which were in place, as referenced above.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the new Leeds Housing Strategy 2022-2027, as presented at
appendix 1 to the submitted report, be approved;
(b) That it be noted that the Director of Communities, Housing and
Environment and the Chief Housing Officer will be accountable for the
implementation of the new strategy and overseeing its delivery.
DATE OF PUBLICATION:

FRIDAY, 24TH JUNE 2022

LAST DATE FOR CALL IN
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS:

5.00 P.M., FRIDAY, 1ST JULY 2022
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 27th July, 2022

Page 42

